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The history of St. James School began
in 1890, when Sisters of Mercy converted the orig-
inal wooden frame Church along upper Main
Street into a three-room schoolhouse.  In Septem-
ber of that same year, 125 students from grades
one through eight were enrolled at the parish
school.  Much like the public elementary schools
in Woodbridge proper, St. James students re-
ceived a well-rounded education.  The Sisters
taught academic subjects along with music, paint-
ing and drawing, as well as needlework.  In 1921,
due to the increase in enrollment, a converted hall
on Second Street and Amboy Avenue housed
kindergarten through grade three, while grades
four through eight were taught at the school on
upper Main Street.  By 1924, the present St.
James School was constructed.  The St. James
graduating class of 1924 was the School’s first stu-
dents to be admitted to Woodbridge High School-
a successful feat, as Woodbridge High School
Principal, Dr. John Love, was reluctant to accept
them.  Subsequent additions to the School in 1954,
as well as development of curriculum and daycare
centers contributed to the school’s growth. As the
school expanded, so did the Church.  The second
Church structure remained here until dedicated
pastors Monsignor Griffin and Monsignor Charles
G. McCorristin, the longest serving pastor of the
parish, made plans for the modern development
and construction of a new Church and facilities.
Ground was broken for the present church in 1966.
Bishop George W. Ahr dedicated the new Church
on June 23, 1968, just months after the old Victo-
rian Church was demolished.  

The present Church and School sit upon
land which is believed to be near the site of the
original Parker Printing Press.  In 1751, James
Parker established the first printing press in the
colonies in Woodbridge.  He printed many public
documents, including legislative proceedings,
newspaper, and The New American Magazine, the
first periodical ever to be published in America.
Throughout the years, as this land has been culti-
vated, print type and other materials have been
found near the present school site.  Some believe
that Parker’s operations were held in or around the
great vicinity of Grove Street and Amboy Avenue.
The exact location of Parker’s Press remains un-
known, however, and is highly questionable.   

Today, the Parish Community of St.
James holds an important place in the early
history of Woodbridge.  Over 300 years later,
the St. James Parish family continues to serve
the  community of Woodbridge in the Roman
Catholic tradition. 

William Cutter House 
& Clay Banks 

Circa 1800 

Built at the end of the eighteenth century, this
farm house at 115 Amboy Avenue was the
home of William Cutter, the father of successful
clay magnate, Hampton Cutter.  William Cutter’s
great-grandfather, Richard, was the first Cutter
to settle in Woodbridge at the beginning of the
eighteenth century.  In 1709, he established a
mill in the area of the present Cutter’s Dock
Road.  Among many of the Cutter Family
homes that existed in this area of Woodbridge,
this home is believed to be the birthplace of
Hampton Cutter.  Born in Woodbridge on De-
cember 25, 1811, Hampton Cutter was edu-
cated in the Town’s schools and worked his
father’s land until he married in 1836.  Although
the Cutters were average farmers in Wood-
bridge, it was Hampton who brought success to
the family name.  Hampton Cutter resided in this
home, and years after his father’s death, while
plowing the land, he discovered large deposits
of kaolin on this farm in 1845.  In turn, he estab-
lished his own business, supplying this material
which was used in the manufacture of fire-
bricks.  His sons joined him in a partnership,
and Hampton Cutter & Sons continued to
amass a great fortune in the shipment of clay to
major cities such as New York, Boston, and Al-
bany, among others.  By the early 1870s, Cutter
planned the construction of the large mansion
just a short distance from this home.  He lived
there until his death in 1882.  His son, William
H. Cutter, later constructed a large, Italianate
villa on Green Street, which still stands today.  

The clay banks behind the home were
the resources which built the Cutter fortune.
The banks or mines consisted of the area lo-

cated behind this home and extended to the
present land on which Woodbridge Center
stands.  To this day, deposits of clay can still be
found around this site, as well as in other parts
of Woodbridge.  In addition to providing hun-
dreds and thousands of tons of clay, this site
holds a place in geological history.  In 1929, di-
nosaur tracks were discovered by miners work-
ing in the banks behind this home.  Rutgers
geologists later revealed that the ninety million
year old prints from the Cretaceous Period
were the only ones from this era ever discov-
ered east of the Mississippi River.      

Today, the William Cutter House is a
private apartment house, while the clay banks
behind it remain a hidden part of Wood-
bridge’s history. 

Hampton Cutter Mansion

One of the most distinctive buildings seen from
the New Jersey Turnpike and Route 35 sits
upon Strawberry Hill.  This landmark Italianate-
style mansion was the home of Hampton Cutter,
Esq., famous clay magnate of Woodbridge.
Years after the discovery of kaolin on his farm
in 1845, Cutter built this home where he resided
until his death in 1882.  The home is also known
as the Cutter-Prall mansion, as Cutter’s daugh-
ter Emily resided here with her husband, James
Palmer Prall after their marriage in 1883.
Hampton Cutter bequeathed the home to Emily
upon his death in 1882.  The Cutter-Prall family
resided here until the 1920s.  In 1926, the home
was sold to The Little Servant Sisters, a Polish
order of religious established in the United
States in the 1920s.  In 1931, the Sisters ac-
quired the building for use as an orphanage for
Polish-speaking children.  The orphanage was
under the direction of governess, Sister Mary
Louise, who was a former resident at the or-
phanage before joining the Little Servant Sis-
ters.  In its prime, the orphanage housed up to
fifty children.  Due to financial circumstances,
however, it closed its doors in 1948.  The sisters
remained in the home, which also served as a
first-aid center for the victims of the Fulton
Street train wreck of 1951.  The mansion is lo-
cated near the site of many significant Revolu-
tionary War skirmishes which took place near
Strawberry Hill in 1777.  The home’s notable
features include fine red brick construction with
wood trimmings and a gilded cupola.  It has re-
mained nearly unchanged since its completion
in 1873.  It  presently serves as the convent of
The Little Servant Sisters, who administer the
adjacent St. Joseph’s Care Center.
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Captain Isaac Inslee House 
Circa 1859

This Antebellum structure was the home of
prominent citizen and Woodbridge native, Cap-
tain Isaac Inslee.  The Inslee family first came to
Massachusetts from Scotland and later settled
in New Jersey.  His great-grandfather, George
Inslee, fought in the American Revolution
against the British.  Captain Inslee’s father,
William, was born in Woodbridge and was a
member of the Whig Party, and later became a
leading figure in the Republican Party.  Isaac In-
slee was born in Rahway on February 6, 1835.
He grew up in Woodbridge and received his ed-
ucation from the Town’s schools.  Like his father
and great-grandfather, Captain Inslee worked as
an apprentice in the carriage-making business
before taking work in Woodbridge’s prosperous
clay industry.  He enlisted in the United States
Volunteer Army during the Civil War, with the
New Jersey Volunteers, 28th Regiment, Com-
pany F.  Inslee was promoted to Captain for his
command of many men on the front, and saw
action at Fredericksburg and Chancellorsville.
He was noted for his heroic actions at Freder-
icksburg, where he led the 28th Regiment
through heavy Rebel fire after their Colonel was
killed in action.  After the war, Inslee married
Sarah M. Ayers, of New Brunswick, and returned
to the clay business until his retirement.  Captain
Inslee was a prominent Republican and Free-
holder.  He was once a Supervisor of Roads and
sat on the Board of Education.  He was also a
member of several other fraternal organizations,
notably the William C. Berry Post, G.A.R., where
he served as Commander.  After his retirement,
he built a second home in the early 1890s, which
presently stands on the corner of Barron Avenue
and Freeman Street.  He is buried in the Alpine
Cemetery in Perth Amboy.  Today, this home is
a private residence.

Our Lady of 
Mount Carmel Church

At the end of the nineteenth century, thousands
of Hungarians immigrated to the United States.

Many came to Woodbridge and settled in the his-
toric neighborhood behind and surrounding this
present site.  A large number of these immigrants
were Catholics, but were without a local Church
in which to worship.  To meet the needs of Hun-
garian-speaking Catholics in Woodbridge, Our
Lady of Mount Carmel Church was established
on October 10, 1920 by Bishop Walsh.  The first
Church structure was dedicated on August 7,
1921.  Prior to its construction, Hungarian resi-
dents walked nearly four miles along the railroad
tracks, then constructed at grade level, to Our
Lady of Hungary in Perth Amboy, to attend serv-
ices and take their children to catechism.  The
second Church structure, adjacent to this site,
was built in 1960.  Bishop George W. Ahr blessed
the old neighboring Church, which was converted
into Our Lady of Mount Carmel School later that
same year.  Four grade levels were introduced,
with a higher grade offered each subsequent
year.  By 1966, twelve students graduated from
the school, which was served by the Daughters
of Divine Charity until 1970.  This site was an im-
portant institution for the Hungarian-speaking
Catholic community, many of whom worked in the
booming clay industry of Woodbridge, taking jobs
in factories like the M.D. Valentine Brick Com-
pany, the Salamander Works, James E. Berry
Fire Brick Factory, and the clay mines of Hampton
Cutter & Sons, among others.  Today, the parish
serves a diverse Hungarian, Korean, and Filipino
congregation.  The old Mount Carmel School is
presently shared with the Korean-speaking resi-
dents of Woodbridge, serving as the quasi parish
of Our Lady of Korea.

Fulton Street Neighborhood

The neighborhood of Fulton, Second, Albert
and Caroline Streets, as well as the streets
they border were first surveyed and mapped
in 1840 by Ichabod Potter.  This historic sec-
tion of town was home to the working class
residents of Woodbridge.  Many living within
these homes worked in the illustrious clay in-
dustries in town, notably the Salamander
Works, M.D. Valentine & Brick Company, and
Hampton Cutter & Sons, among others.  In
the earlier half of the nineteenth century, this
section of Woodbridge received many Irish
and German immigrants who came to town
for job opportunities.  The latter half of the
nineteenth century saw the influx of many
Hungarian immigrants, who worked in the
clay mines and factories within the town
proper and contributed to Woodbridge’s in-
dustrial growth and prosperity.  The train
tracks along Fulton Street, originally con-
structed at grade level, were later elevated in
the late 1940s.    Many of the historic homes
still standing date from the 1870s to the early
1900s.  Residences at 263 and 281 Fulton
Street, 60 Caroline Street, 340 North William
Street, and 85 Second Street are among the
oldest houses in this neighborhood.

Print courtesy of the Woodbridge Public Library

Fulton Street Train Wreck

Despite Woodbridge’s rich, prosperous history,
the town was not without tragedy.  On February
6th, 1951, a crowded steam locomotive carried
over thousand passengers heading along the
Pennsylvania Railroad Jersey Central rail line,
which departed from Exchange Place in Jersey
City en route to Bayhead in South Jersey.  Many
of the passengers were Wall Street employees,
which gave that particular express train its nick-
name, “The Broker.”  The rail lines between
Woodbridge and Perth Amboy were undergoing
construction, and many temporary trestles and
tracks were constructed alongside the perma-
nent tracks to allow trains to keep running with-
out disrupting work.  One week before the
disaster, a directive was issued by the Pennsyl-
vania Railroad, stating that a speed of 25 miles
per hour was not to be exceeded for trains trav-
eling from Woodbridge to Perth Amboy.  On the
following Tuesday evening, “The Broker” was
traveling over 50 miles per hour, filled to capac-
ity with commuters.  As it approached a sharp
turn at the temporary trestle just north of the
train bridge at Legion Place, the locomotive and
several train cars derailed, plummeting down
the embankment, killing 86 people and injuring
hundreds more.  The horrific sound was report-
edly heard from miles away, and the crash
shook many homes and shattered the windows
of other residences in downtown Woodbridge.
Hundreds from all over New Jersey, as well as
Woodbridge’s own residents came to the aid of
the victims of the disaster.  In 2002, a monu-
ment was erected under the train pass, dedi-
cated to those who died in the train wreck.  It
remains one of the worst train wrecks ever
recorded in American history.

Photos courtesy of the 
Woodbridge Public Library Archives
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The second St. James Church structure is pre-
pared for its move by tractor in 1924.  It stood on
the site of the present Church structure until it
was razed in 1968.

Photo courtesy of St. James Church Archives:
Enhanced by Steven Prior
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